
 
VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION 

PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Meeting 
A  G  E  N  D  A 

July 22, 2015 
8:00 a.m. to 9:40 a.m. 

 
 

 
 ACTION TIME PAGE 
 
A. Call to Order  --- 8:00 --- 

 
B. Approval of the Minutes 

a) June 24, 2015 Board Meeting  Action 8:01 1-4 
 

C. Executive Committee Report Information 8:04  --- 
 
D. Finance Committee Report  

a) Review financial statements and cash activity Information 8:05 5-8 
b) Authorization for payment of vouchers and payroll Action 8:15 9 
c) Resolution 2015:05 - Surplus of Property Action 8:16 10-18 
 

E. Program Committee Report & Recommendations 
a) Conflicts of Interest --- 8:25 --- 

 b) Program investment recommendations Action 8:26 19-23 
 c) Verdant Community Wellness Center activities update Information 8:40 24-25 
  
F. Marketing Report Information 8:50 26  
 
G. IT Demonstration on Verdant Email Information 8:55 --- 
 
H. Superintendent’s Report Information 9:05 --- 
  
I. Public Comments (please limit to three minutes per speaker) --- 9:10 --- 

 
J.  Commissioner Comments --- 9:15 --- 

 
K. Executive Session    
 a) To consider the legal risks of a proposed action of the district  --- 9:20 --- 
 
L. Open Session --- 9:35 --- 
 
M. Adjournment --- 9:40 --- 



PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting 

Verdant Community Wellness Center 
June 24, 2015 

 
Commissioners 
Present 
 
 

Fred Langer, President  
Bob Knowles, Commissioner  
Karianna Wilson, Commissioner  
 

Commissioners 
Excused 
 

J. Bruce Williams, M.D., Commissioner 
Deana Knutsen, Secretary 
 

Others Present George Kosovich, Assistant Superintendent/Program 
Director 
Jennifer Piplic, Marketing Director 
Sue Waldin, Community Wellness Program Manager 
Karen Goto, Executive Assistant 
Tanya Anderson, Consultant  
Members of the community 
 

Staff Excused Carl Zapora, Superintendent 
Lisa King, Finance Director 
 

Call to Order 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of 
Public Hospital District No. 2, Snohomish County, was 
called to order at 8:04 a.m. by President Langer.   
 

Approval of 
Minutes 
 

Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously 
to approve the minutes of the regular meeting on  
May 27, 2015.  
Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously 
to approve the minutes of the special meeting on  
June 12, 2015.  
 

Executive 
Committee  

President Langer reported that the Executive 
Committee met on June 18, 2015 to review and 
approve the June 24, 2015 board meeting agenda 
and to discuss Swedish Hospital.  
No action was taken. 
 

Board Finance 
Committee 

The committee met on June 19, 2015.  Ms. Anderson 
reviewed the financial statements and cash activity for 

Page 1



Commissioners Meeting 
June 24, 2015 
Page 2 

 

 May 2015 (E:40:15) and highlighted that expenses 
related to the Kruger Clinic flood claims will be 
reimbursed by Verdant’s insurance company.  Ms. 
Anderson also noted that there is one remaining 
payment to the contractor on the Verdant Community 
Wellness Center building. 
Commissioner Knowles asked about the expense for 
Experience Momentum’s program and what the funds 
were used for.  Mr. Kosovich explained that the funds 
were used primarily for staff time.  Commissioner 
Knowles asked that the commission be conscious of 
paying partners for promotion of their own 
organizations. 
 

Authorization 
for Payment of 
Vouchers & 
Payroll 

Warrant Numbers 11035 through 11167 for May 2015 for 
payment in the amount of $65,598.73 were presented 
for approval (E:41:15).  Motion was made, seconded 
and passed unanimously to approve. 
 

Program 
Oversight 
Committee 
Update 

The Program Oversight Committee met on June 19, 
2015 and reviewed eight application requests (E:42:15): 
two renewal requests, five new funding requests, and 
one pending application previously discussed.   
President Langer asked the committee if the program 
budget should be increased to accommodate future 
requests.  Commissioner Wilson said she did not think an 
increase was necessary at this time. 
No conflicts of interest were reported by any of the 
commissioners.  
 
Renewal Applications: 
Motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously 
to approve the Center for Human Services Youth 
Counseling request in full at $165,000 per year for two 
more years. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Wilson to approve 
partial funding at $25,000.  Motion was amended by 
Commissioner Knowles, seconded and passed 
unanimously to approve $20,000 partially funding 
Within Reach insurance outreach and enrollment for 
one-year instead of the $40,000 requested with the 
expectation that this is likely the last year that Verdant 
would fund the program. 
 

Page 2



Commissioners Meeting 
June 24, 2015 
Page 3 

 

 
New Funding Applications: 
The committee is not recommending the following 
three programs for funding at this time: 

1. YMCA Diabetes Prevention Program  
2. Beecher’s Pure Food Kids Foundation pure food 

kids plus program for nutrition education in the 
schools 

3. Lynnwood Fire Department interventions to 
reduce acute care transfers program to train 
caregivers 

4. City of Lynnwood Meadowdale Playfields Project 
request of $545,336 for two synthetic turf fields at 
Meadowdale Playfields.  The committee is not 
recommending funding at this time because it 
fits in the Building Healthy Communities fund 
which will re-open for requests in 2016. 
 

Needs Additional Follow-up: 
1. Evergreen Manor South County Detox request of 

$485,350 to support a new south county detox 
program for low-income adults.  The committee 
is recommending bringing the applicant in for a 
board presentation sometime in the month of 
August 2015 after the 6th of August.  
Commissioners also discussed the opportunity to 
tour the Everett location. 
 

Program Previously Discussed: 
1. Brain Injury Alliance of Washington multi-year 

funding request ($50,000 in year 1, $35,000 in year 
2, $25,000 in year 3) to serve individuals affected 
by brain injury. Motion was made, seconded and 
passed unanimously to approve. 

  
  
Verdant 
Community 
Wellness 
Center 
Activities 
 

Ms. Waldin presented the programming summary and 
a list of upcoming programs in the Verdant Community 
Wellness Center (VCWC) (E:43:15). 
 

Marketing 
Report 

Ms. Piplic presented the Marketing report (E:44:15) and 
highlighted the Daily Herald’s launch of a new health 
section starting June 27, 2015.   

Page 3



Commissioners Meeting 
June 24, 2015 
Page 4 

 

 
  
Superintendent’s 
Report 
 

Assistant Superintendent Kosovich reported on two 
items: 

1. Superintendent Zapora is not at this board 
meeting as he is attending the AWPHD & WSHA 
annual conference.  

2. Verdant’s IT support will attend the July 2015 
board meeting to assist commissioners with 
setting up access to their Verdant email. 
 

Public 
Comments 
 

Ms. Rowena Miller of the League of Women Voters 
appreciates when the microphone system is used in 
board meetings. 
 

Commissioner 
Comments 
 

None 

Executive 
Session 

President Langer announced that there was no need 
to hold an Executive Session at this meeting.  

  
Adjourn 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting 
was adjourned at 8:30 a.m. 
 
 

 ATTEST BY:  
   
 President 
  
   
 Secretary 

Page 4



Accrual Basis Public Hospital District #2, Snohomish County
Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2015

DRAFT

A B C D
Dec 31, 2014 Jun 30, 2015 $ Change Comments:

1 ASSETS
2 Current Assets
3 Cash Balance 2,840,919        1,447,471        (1,393,448)      
4 Other Current Assets 32,617,628      34,626,202      2,008,573        Includes Investments
5 Total Current Assets  35,458,547      36,073,673      615,126          
6 Total Long‐term & Fixed Assets 47,374,208      46,393,663      (980,545)          Depreciation

7 TOTAL ASSETS 82,832,755      82,467,336      (365,420)         

8 LIABILITIES & EQUITY
9 Liabilities
10 Current Liabilities 2,480,364        1,439,814        (1,040,551)      
11 Long‐term Liabilities 4,857,008        4,825,993        (31,015)             2012 LTGO Bonds
12 Total Liabilities 7,337,372        6,265,807        (1,071,565)      
13 Total Equity 75,495,383      76,201,529      706,146           Annual Net Income
14 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 82,832,755      82,467,336    (365,420)       

A B C D E F 
Jun Actual Jun Budget Fav/(Unfav) YTD Actual YTD Budget Fav/(Unfav)

1 INCOME
2 Ordinary Income 812,278             805,963             6,315                 4,908,906       4,835,780        73,126          

3 EXPENSES

4 Operating Expenses 155,657             168,060             12,403              909,588          1,035,779        126,191        

5 Depreciation Expense 204,863             221,088             16,225              1,309,523       1,386,392        76,869          
6 Program Expenses 403,514             474,917             71,403              3,164,977       3,504,496        339,519        

7 Total Expenses 764,034             864,066             100,031           5,384,088       5,926,667        542,579        

8 OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)

9 Total Other Income/(Expense) 68,007               212,096             (144,089)          1,181,328       1,272,576        (91,248)         
10 NET INCOME 116,250           153,994           (37,743)             706,146          181,688           524,457        

Profit & Loss
June 2015

Verdant received dividends payments of $43,223 and an unrealized loss of $154,518 on our investment portfolio in June and closed with an 
ending market value of $33,535,482.

Annual program commitments total $6,267,939 and $4,693,065 for 2015 and 2016, respectively.  $832,172 remains available to spend in 2015, of 
which $279,958 is earmarked as Superintendent Discretionary.

Additional income of $108,060 and expenses of $36,382 from the Kruger Clinic were incurred, netting to an additional operating income of 
$71,677 in June.  Note that some expenses related to a flood claim will be reimbursed by our insurance company.

Monthly Highlights
June 2015

Page 5



Public Hospital District #2

Warrant Transaction
Number Date Payee      Amount Purpose 

Warrant Activity: 

11168 06/03/2015 City of Lynnwood 867.63 O April 2015 Front Desk Staffing for VCWC after hours
11169 06/03/2015 Dataworks 65.00 A IT Support
11170 06/03/2015 Experience Momentum Inc. 1,625.00 L Couch to 8k Workshop and Walking Group
11171 06/03/2015 Puget Sound Energy 56.52 4/23 ‐ 5/21/15 Natural Gas
11172 06/03/2015 Snohomish County PUD 1,774.50 3/25 ‐ 5/21/15 Electricity
11173 06/03/2015 Sound Publishing, Inc. 39.20 May 27 Board Meeting Legal Notice
11174 06/03/2015 The Seattle Times 120.00 Advertising
11175 06/03/2015 Waste Management 219.82 Garbage
11176 06/03/2015 Puget Sound Gastro 101,000.00 KC Tenant Improvement
11178 06/03/2015 Guardian Security Systems 240.00 AES Radio Monitoring 7/1/15‐9/30/15
11179 06/03/2015 Culinary Events Northwest LLC 713.94 Food for SSC CEO Roundtable, 5/29/15
11180 06/03/2015 Eberle Vivian 3,889.88 3Q15 Self Insurance Work Comp Claims Administration
11181 06/03/2015 Lile International Companies 225.00 May 2015 Storage
11182 06/03/2015 City of Lynnwood 919.69 May 2015 Front Desk Staffing 58.75 hours
11183 06/03/2015 Sound Dietitians 780.00 Instructor reimbursement
11184 06/10/2015 Armstrong Services 1,009.48 Janitorial & Supplies
11185 06/10/2015 Comcast 266.07 Internet & Telephone
11186 06/10/2015 Electronic Business Machines 1,170.05 3/1/15 ‐ 5/31/15 Copy Machine
11187 06/10/2015 Evergreen Print Solutions 324.49 Business Cards
11188 06/10/2015 Moss Adams ‐ Cost Report 5,525.00 2005 & 2006 CPE Report update with claims data from S/E with review from HC
11189 06/10/2015 Comcast 519.89 Internet & Telephone
11190 06/10/2015 Ash Consulting 455.00 May 2015 Accounting Consulting
11191 06/10/2015 Steve Margo 200.00 Refund for Damage Deposit
11192 06/10/2015 Moss Adams ‐ Audit 18,202.59 2014 Audit
11193 06/10/2015 Edmonds Chamber of Commerce 2,500.00 Sponsorship of 5k ‐ Promote Verdant Walking Group Program in Summer 2015
11194 06/10/2015 Gradient 14,275.87 Turf Study
11195 06/10/2015 Healthcare Realty 4,464.03 May 2015 Property Management
11196 06/16/2015 Staples 110.96 Supplies
11197 06/16/2015 Tulalip Resort Casino 1,000.00 Deposit for Board Retreat, December 4‐5, 2015
11198 06/30/2015 Advocate Telecom 179.58 Remove old phone/Comcast equipment
11199 06/30/2015 City of Lynnwood ‐ Utilities 624.42 Water/Sewer/Storm
11200 06/30/2015 Consolidated Landscape Maintenance, Inc. 924.74 Landscaping maintenance
11201 06/30/2015 Economic Alliance Snohomish County 395.00 Membership Dues
11202 06/30/2015 Lowe Graham Jones PLLC 100.00 Legal for trademark
11203 06/30/2015 National Institute for Coordinated Health 1,574.37 Instructor fee 6/27/15 plus reimbursement for food expenses
11204 06/30/2015 Premera Blue Cross 4,081.02 July 2015 Employee Medical & Dental Insurance
11205 06/30/2015 Principal Financial Group 989.67 July 2015 Employee Life Insurance
11206 06/30/2015 Puget Sound Energy 54.15 5/21 ‐ 6/22/15 Natural Gas
11207 06/30/2015 Sound Publishing, Inc. 39.20 June 24 Board Meeting Legal Notice
11208 06/30/2015 The Seattle Times 338.18 Advertising
11209 06/30/2015 The StayWell Company, LLC 3,000.00 Website
11210 06/30/2015 ThyssenKrupp Elevator Company 778.12 7/1/15‐9/30/15 Elevator maintenance agreement
11211 06/30/2015 Tube Art Group 1,946.25 Balance Due for welcome/directional sign
11212 06/30/2015 Wells Fargo 2,576.04 Misc.

Page 6



Warrant Transaction
Number Date Payee      Amount Purpose 

11213 06/30/2015 YWCA of Seattle, King and Snohomish Co 4,765.00 Reflective Parenting with Childcare (4/21‐6/9) Grief & Loss Group (4/28‐6/16)
11214 06/30/2015 Commission on Asian Pacific American Affairs 200.00 Refund for Damage Deposit
11237 06/17/2015 Lowe Graham Jones PLLC 75.00 Legal for trademark
11238 06/17/2015 Refugee & Immigrant Services NW 26.25 Spanish Translation 5/27/15

Total Warrants  185,226.60                       

Kruger Clinic Activity:

302‐322 June 2015 Various Claimants/Vendors 172,538.94                        L Administered by Healthcare Realty

Workers Compensation Claims Activity:

305235‐239 June 2015 Various Claimants/Vendors 2,077.59                            W Administered by Eberle Vivian

Wire/ACH Activity:

6/12/2015 Payroll 17,221.90 ACH payroll transfer
6/12/2015 Paychex 90.62 Fee for payroll processing 
6/12/2015 Department of Treasury 7,219.73 Payroll taxes for 6/6/15 pay period ending
6/12/2015 Valic 2,710.99 Payroll 401(a)/457 Deposit
6/26/2015 Payroll 18,355.73 P ACH payroll transfer
6/26/2015 Paychex 90.62 M Fee for payroll processing 
6/26/2015 Department of Treasury 7,615.02 T Payroll taxes for 6/20/15 pay period ending
6/26/2015 Valic 2,829.55 V Payroll 401(a)/457 Deposit
6/10/2015 Wells Fargo 139.36 May 2015 Client Analysis Bank Fee
6/15/2015 Alzheimer's Association Western & Central 7,209.16 Program Payment
6/15/2015 American Diabetes Association 4,166.67 Program Payment
6/15/2015 American Heart Association 350.00 Program Payment
6/15/2015 Boys & Girls Club of Snohomish County 12,833.33 Program Payment
6/15/2015 CampFire 4,166.67 Program Payment
6/15/2015 Cascade Bicycle Club Education Foundation 2,666.67 Program Payment
6/15/2015 Center for Human Services 13,523.67 Program Payment
6/15/2015 ChildStrive 23,113.25 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 City of Lynnwood 15,165.66 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Community Health Center of Snohomish Co 56,869.72 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Domestic Violence Services Snohomish Co 1,621.08 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Edmonds Community College 10,990.58 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Edmonds Community College Foundation 4,396.33 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Edmonds School District No. 15 66,892.84 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Edmonds Senior Center 9,166.67 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Kindering 7,500.00 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Mary Porter, RDN 960.00 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Medical Teams International 4,000.00 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Prescription Drug Assistance Foundation 4,166.67 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Program for Early Parent Support 2,987.50 E Program Payment

Page 7



Warrant Transaction
Number Date Payee      Amount Purpose 

Wire/ACH Activity:

6/15/2015 Puget Sound Christian Clinic 9,166.67 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Puget Sound Kidney Centers Foundation 5,833.33 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Senior Services of Snohomish County 57,936.67 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Smithwright Services 5,416.67 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Snohomish County Fire District 1 12,035.50 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Snohomish County Music Project 2,416.67 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Volunteers of America Western WA 6,362.92 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Wonderland Development Center 11,250.00 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 YWCA of Seattle, King and Snohomish Co 2,083.33 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 City of Mountlake Terrace 5,250.00 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Korean Women's Association 5,000.00 E Program Payment
6/15/2015 Center for Advanced Recovery Solutions 600.00 Program Payment
6/15/2015 NW Parkinson's Foundation 20,000.00 Program Payment
6/16/2015 Benefit Solutions Inc. 278.46 FSA Payments
6/5/2015 Benefit Solutions Inc. 278.46 FSA Payments
6/16/2015 Benefit Solutions Inc. 10.00 FSA Payments
6/30/2015 Benefit Solutions Inc. 278.46 FSA Payments
6/25/2015 WA Department of Revenue 750.96 B&O tax
6/1/2015 US Bank 77,400.00 Interest on 2012 LTGO Bonds

Total Wires/ACH Transactions 531,368.09                       

Total Disbursements 891,211.22$                     

Transaction
Date Payer      Amount Purpose 

Deposits: 

6/1/2015 Swedish/Edmonds 734,176.21 Monthly lease
6/1/2015 Value Village 24,428.45 Monthly lease
6/1/2015 Raymond Liu, D.D.S. 3,320.83 Kruger Clinic monthly lease 
6/1/2015 Brian Tagaki, MD 75.00 Kruger Clinic monthly lease 
6/1/2015 John Headley MD PS 18,949.07 Kruger Clinic monthly lease 
6/10/2015 Snohomish County 137,179.00 Levy
6/9/2015 Puget Sound Gastro 26,843.75 Kruger Clinic monthly lease 
6/15/2015 Enduris 38,161.00 Reimbursement for KC flood claim
6/25/2015 Healthcare Realty Services, Inc. 4,663.72 Monthly ground Lease 

Total Deposits 987,797.03$                     

Page 8



 VERDANT HEALTH COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT #2 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

WARRANT APPROVAL 
 

 We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of Public Hospital District #2 of 
Snohomish County, Washington, do hereby certify that the merchandise or services hereinafter 
specified have been received and that Warrant Numbers 11068 through 11238 have been 
issued for payment in the amount of $185,226.60. These warrants are hereby approved. 
 
 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ _______________________________ 
Lisa M. King  Commissioner 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Commissioner 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Commissioner 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Commissioner 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Commissioner 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

 

Warrants Processed: 6-1-15 – 6-30-15  $65,598.73
   
Work Comp Claims Pd: 6-1-15 – 6-30-15  2,077.59
   
Kruger Clinic Processed: 6-1-15 – 6-30-15  172,538.94
   
Payroll: 5-24-15 – 6-06-15

6-07-15 – 6-20-15 
17,221.90 
18,355.73 

   35,577.63
   
Electronic Payments: Payroll Taxes 

Paychex 
Valic Retirement 
Benefit Solutions 
Bank Fees 
WA State Dept Revenue  
Bond Interest Payment 
Program Expenditures 

14,834.75 
181.24 

5,540.54 
845.38 
139.36 
750.96 

77,400.00 
396,098.23 

   531,368.09
   
 Grand Total   $891,211.22

Page 9



PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 2 
SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-05 

 
A RESOLUTION of the Commission of Public Hospital District No. 2, 
Snohomish County, Washington, determining certain personal property to 
be surplus and no longer required for public hospital district purposes of 
the District and authorizing the Superintendent or his designee to sell all or 
any part of such property on a negotiated basis upon the most favorable 
terms and conditions obtainable or to otherwise dispose of such property, 
and ratifying prior actions. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, certain personal property of the District is no longer required for District 
purposes and the Commission wishes to dispose of such property in a lawful manner as promptly 
as reasonably possible; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2015-03 and Resolution No. 2015-04, the 
Commission determined and declared personal property identified in those resolutions was no 
longer required for public hospital district purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to correct some typographical errors in the exhibits 

attached to Resolution No. 2015-03 and Resolution No. 2015-04; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF PUBLIC HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO 
2, SNOHOMISH COUNTY, WASHINGTON, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  It is hereby found, determined and declared that all of the personal property 
identified on Exhibit A hereto is no longer required for public hospital district purposes and such 
property therefore is surplus.  It is further found and declared to be in the best interest of the 
District that such property (the “Surplus Property”) be disposed of promptly as hereinafter 
provided. 
 
 Section 2.  The Superintendent or his designee is hereby authorized and directed to sell 
on a negotiated basis upon the most favorable terms and conditions obtainable all or any part of 
the Surplus Property as soon as reasonably possible.  Any Surplus Property not thus sold shall be 
disposed of and removed from the premises of Swedish Edmonds Hospital at the direction of the 
Superintendent or his designee at the least possible cost to the District. 
 
 Section 3.  The Commission hereby approves the corrected exhibits to Resolution Nos. 
2015-03 and 2015-04, which are attached hereto as exhibits B and C. 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Board of Commissioners of Public Hospital 
District No. 2, Snohomish County, Washington, at an open public meeting thereof, this 22nd day 
of July, 2015, the following commissioners being present and voting in favor of the resolution. 
 

Page 10



 
       
President and Commissioner 
 
 
       
Commissioner 
 
 
       
Commissioner 
 
 
       
Commissioner 
 
 
       
Secretary and Commissioner 

Page 11



CERTIFICATE 

 

I, Deana Knutsen, Secretary to the Board of Commissioners of Public Hospital District 

No. 2, Snohomish County, Washington, certify that the attached copy of Resolution No. 2015-05 

is a true and correct copy of the original resolution adopted on July 22, 2015, as that resolution 

appears on the Minute Book of the District.  

 DATED this 22nd day of July, 2015.  
 
 
              
       Deana Knutsen 
       Secretary to the Board of Commissioners 
 

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



July 2015 Program Summary 

 Five application requests up for discussion: 

o Three new funding requests 

o Two renewal requests 

 

New Funding Requests 
 

 Compass Health – Behavioral Health Navigator:  a multi-year request for $100,000 per year for three years 

to hire a behavioral healthcare navigator/community educator.  The staff person’s role would be to equip 

community members with the tools they need to help individuals in the first stages of crisis, and his/her core 

focus would be education. The goal would be to train 300 participants per year with a focus on increasing 

knowledge and confidence in accessing the mental health system. 
 

The program committee is not recommending the project for funding.  The committee felt that education 

efforts like “Mental Health First Aid” do not address many of the access and navigation challenges of 

accessing mental health services. 
 

 Brookside Research & Development – Fall Prevention Program:  a revised request of $29,780 on a one-time 

basis from an organization that requested funding a year ago.  The program would make use of faith 

congregations and technology to screen for fall risks among older adults.  The applicant, Brookside Research, 

is a small for-profit company with a history of NIH grants/contracts.  Initially, Brookside would partner with 

three churches (Holy Rosary, Trinity Lutheran, and Northwest Church) and two community organizations 

(Senior Services and the Edmonds Senior Center).  Verdant funds would be used to for instructor fees, 

technology and other training costs. 
 

The program committee was interested in potentially funding the request, but would like Brookside to 

secure a formal relationship with an organization like Senior Services of Snohomish County.  The 

committee wanted the project to show more permanent community support and oversight from an 

established and broad-based organization. 
 

 Swedish Edmonds – Opiate Rescue Kits:  a one-time request for $5,000 to support "opiate rescue" kits that 

would be distributed from Swedish Edmonds to prevent poisoning deaths from prescription opioids and 

heroin. The kits would be available by prescription from the hospital pharmacy and could be provided to a 

patient, family member or friend.   
 

The program committee is not recommending funding the project, because it did not fit with Verdant’s 

focus on earlier-stage prevention. 
 

Renewal Requests 

 

 Project Access Northwest – Low income specialty medical and dental care: a renewal request for a project 

to link underinsured patients to donated medical specialty and dental care.  Funds are used for case 

management and the project would expect to serve 192 patients per year.   

Page 19



The request is for $110,000 per year for three years (37.5% increase from current level of $80,000 per year), 

with the rationale that the program now covers specialty medical and dental.  The total program budget is 

approximately 40% medical and 60% dental. 

 

The committee is recommending partially funding the request at $90,000 per year for three years, 

because there appears to still be significant demand for the services and the project fits with Verdant’s 

Access to Healthcare priority. 

 

 YWCA - Children’s Domestic Violence Program:  a renewal request for a 10-week in home recovery program 

for children (ages 3-18) and families from domestic violence.  Funds are used to pay for a domestic violence 

advocate and therapist and the program offers in home counseling, education, skill building and safety 

planning. 

 

The committee is recommending fully funding the program three more years at $25,000 per year. 

 

Page 20



Verdant Health Commission Proposal Summary July 2015

A B C D E F G H I

# Name Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

Education & 

Empowerment
Prevention

Access to 

Healthcare 

Policy & 

Advocacy

1

Compass Health - Behavioral 

Healthcare Navigator and 

Community Educator

A multi-year request for funds to hire a behavioral healthcare navigator 

and community educator.  This staff person’s role would be to equip 

community members with the tools they need to help individuals in the 

first stages of crisis, but his/her core focus would be education. Due to time 

constraints on the individual, he/she would not actively case manage or 

personally advocate for clients on a one-on-one basis.  The goal would be 

to train 300 participants per year with a focus on increasing knowledge and 

confidence in accessing the mental health system.

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 X X X

2

Brookside Research & 

Development - Partnering to 

Prevent Falls in Older Adults

A revised application from an organization that requested funding a year 

ago.  The  program would make use of faith congregations to screen for fall 

risks among older adults using technology.  The applicant, Brookside 

Research, is a small for-profit company with a history of NIH 

grants/contracts.  Initially, Brookside would partner with three churches 

(Holy Rosary, Trinity Lutheran, and Northwest Church) and two community 

organizations (Senior Services and the Edmonds Senior Center).  Verdant 

funds would be used to for instructor fees, technology and other training 

costs.

$29,780 X X X

3
Swedish Edmonds - Opiate 

Rescue Kit

A one-time request to support "opiate rescue" kits that would be 

distributed from Swedish Edmonds to prevent poisoning deaths from 

prescription opioids and heroin. The kits would be available by prescription 

from the hospital pharmacy and could be provided to a patient, family 

member or friend. 

$5,000 X

New Funding Requests Request for funding Priority Area

Page 21



Verdant Health Commission Proposal Summary July 2015

# Name Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

Education & 

Empowerment
Prevention

Access to 

Healthcare 

Policy & 

Advocacy

4

Project Access Northwest - 

Low income medical 

specialty and dental care

A renewal request for a project to link underinsured patients to donated 

medical specialty and dental care.  Funds are used for case management 

and the project would expect to serve 192 patients per year.  

$110,000 $110,000 $110,000 X

5

YWCA - Children's Domestic 

Violence Program

A renewal request for a 10-week in home recovery program for children 

(ages 3-18) and families from domestic violence.  Funds are used to pay for 

a domestic violence advocate and therapist and the program offers in 

home counseling, education, skill building and safety planning.
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 X X X

Renewal Requests

Page 22



Updated July 2015

1 Scenario 1:  100% renewal

2 2015

3 Existing multi-year commitments $4,752,297

5 New Grants (plug) $120,575

6 Expected Renewals (100%) $242,678

7 One-time events $75,000

8 Building Healthy Communities Fund $1,331,000

9 Community Programs Internal $290,000

10 Superintendent Discretionary $288,450

11 Total $7,100,000

12

13 Scenario B:  80% renewal

14 2015

15 Existing multi-year commitments $4,752,297

17 New Grants (plug) $169,111

18 Expected Renewals (80%) $194,142

19 One-time events $75,000

20 Building Healthy Communities Fund $1,331,000

21 Community Programs Internal $290,000

22 Superintendent Discretionary $288,450

23 Total $7,100,000

24 Programs up for Renewal in 2015

25
Organization Name Program Name Funding Ends

 2015 $ amount at current 

funding level 

26 Project Access Northwest Project Access Northwest Nov-14 $80,000

28 Providence Hospice & Home Care Foundation Hospice Outreach and Education Jun-15 $90,417

29
YWCA of Seattle, King, and Snohomish County Children's Domestic Violence Program May-15 $16,667

30 Medical Teams International Mobile Dental Program Jul-15 $20,000

31
YWCA of Seattle, King, and Snohomish County Mental Health Counseling Program Nov-15 $4,167

35
Washington CAN Insurance Outreach Nov-15 $31,428

36 Total $242,678

Verdant Program Financial Forecasting

Note:  includes $50k/year  for swim lessons, and $150k start up 

for PSCC Lynnwood Dental clinic, w/ongoing payments beginning 

in Sept.

Page 23



Verdant Community Wellness Center Summary 

Completed Programs 
 
General Community and Provider Events  Attendance 

 Second Time Around ‐ PEPS Support Group for Moms (4/30 – 7/11)* 
 Snohomish County Funder Coalition  (June 25) 
 Community Health Center Focus Group for Spanish Speakers (June 30) 
 MTI Specialty Dental Clinic – Root Canals (7/13) 
 City of Lynnwood Healthy Communities Action Plan Launch (7/14) 
 Evergreen Home Health ‐ Home Visiting Clinical Team Meeting (7/15) 
 ELL / Health and Wellness Talks for Spanish Speakers (7/16 – 8/27) 
 Verdant Partner Roundtable (7/17) 
 Alzheimer’s Association Care Coordinator Weekly Hours (onging) 
 WA Prescription Assistance Foundation Weekly Hours (ongoing) 

     6‐8 
        6 

20 
6 patients 

55 
25 
35 
29 

varies 
varies 

 
Nutrition and Healthy Behaviors  Attendance

 Diabetes Prevention Workshop in Spanish (6/27)* 
 AHA Simple Cooking with Heart in Spanish (6/29)* 
 AHA 6 Week Cooking Series for Teens (7/10‐8/14) 
 9 Summer Walks scheduled in July 
 Cooking with Fresh, Local Produce Summer Series (7/13)* 
 Chronic Kidney Disease Prevention Workshops (7/15)* 
 Multicultural Everyday Nutrition II (7/18) (Vietnamese)* 
 Lifestyle Change Check‐Ins (drop‐ in 1st and 3rd Tuesdays of each month)* 
 Getting to Goal Program (Weight Management Consultations)* 

  15 
         16 
      15 
    varies 
      14 

          18 
25 
6‐12 

10 clients    

 
Behavioral Health & Substance Use   Attendance
 Snohomish County Wraparound Services Provider Meeting (July 7) 
 For the Kids Sake – Snohomish Co. Seminars for Divorcing Parents (7/8)  
 For the Kids Sake Facilitator Training  (7/11) 
 Adult Children of Alcoholics Weekly Support Group 
 Snohomish County Music Therapy (weekly sessions)*  

40 
            36 
            12 

8 
1‐3 

 
Other Programs  Attendance 

 Play and Learn Group, Wonderland Development Center (2X / month)*  Varies 

 
* = Grant/Program Funded Partner 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



Verdant Community Wellness Center Summary 

Upcoming Programs 
 
General Community and Provider Events  

 Evergreen Home Visiting Nurses Team Meeting (July 30) 
 Mothers of Children with Disabilities Monthly Support Network  (August 1) 
 MTI Specialty Dental Clinic (September 14) 

 
Nutrition and Healthy Behaviors 

 ‘Field Trips for Health’ from Edmonds Senior Center – celebrating Farmer’s Market Week with 
simple recipes featuring fresh fruits and vegetables (August 5) 

 Korean Women’s Association: hosting Korean and Vietnamese language workshops about 
Medicare, nutrition, cancer prevention and physical activity and fall prevention.   

 Next event Multicultural Everyday Fall Prevention and Yoga (7/23) (Korean)*  
 Summertime Cooking Demos Featuring Local, Fresh Fruits and Vegetables  

(August 10 / September 14)* 
 Food Truths ‐ Busting Nutritional Myths (August 19)* 
 AHA ‐ Packing Healthy Lunches ‐ Parents and Kids Learning Together (August 29)* 
 Stop Diabetes Initiative ‐ Continued Workshops* 
 Ongoing ‐ Lifestyle Change Check‐Ins (drop‐in support 2x/month)* 
 Ongoing ‐ Getting to Goal: Individual Weight Management Consulting with a Dietitian* 

 
Behavioral Health & Substance Use Focus 

 Managing Difficult Emotions (starting July 23 for 8 weeks)* 
 Mental Health First Aid Training for In‐person Assisters (July 29) 
 For the Kids Sake ‐ Seminars for Parents Going Through Divorce (August 5)  
 Psychological First Aid for Medical Reserve Corp Volunteers (August 22) 

 
Other Programs in Development 

 Continuing Walking Groups – working with Feet First and the City of Lynnwood to offer Summer 
Walking Series in July/August/September* 

 Spanish Language Cooking and Activity Classes*  
 Exotic Flavors Cooking Series with Swedish Edmonds Chef/Dietitian (Monthly Classes in the Fall) 
 Health Education Series in partnership with PacMed 

o Promoting Child Development Through Play – Pediatrician led (September 30) 
o 4 Living Well Alliance Workshops (starting September 17)* 

(Living to 100; Virtual Grocery Store Tour + Counting Calories and Cash; Winter Wellness 
+ Flu shots; Carb Conundrum) 

 5 Nutrition Workshops with Total Health RD* 
o (Mediterranean Diet; Anti‐Inflammatory Diet; Surviving the Holiday Season of 

Indulgence; Nutrition Reboot in the New Year; Nutritional Needs of Women in 
Menopause and Beyond) 

 Partnership with Sno‐Isle Libraries offering on‐site programs sponsored by the VCWC 
 
* = Grant/Program Funded Partner 

Page 25



 

July 2015 Marketing Report 

Future Events 

 

National Night Out 

 Mountlake Terrace – Verdant and 2-1-1 staff will host a table and share information and resources with the 

anticipated 1,000+ individuals who attend the community event at the Evergreen Playfields on Aug. 4. 

 Lynnwood – A Verdant flyer with classes and programming will be included in the packets distributed by 

Lynnwood Police to the 28 neighborhood sites with coordinated National Night Out activities on Aug. 4. 

 

Other 

 Edge of Amazing Health Summit and launch of LiveHealthy2020 Thursday, July 23 from 8 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. at 

Xfinity Arena in Everett. 

 Latino Expo 2015 Saturday, Aug. 8 from 12-5 p.m. at Edmonds Community College. 

 Back-to-School Health & Resource Fair Thursday, August 27 from 6-9 p.m. at Cedar Valley Community School. 

 

Page 26


	Comm-Agenda_07-22-15
	Comm-Minutes_06-24-15
	Check Register for 7-15 FC meeting
	Warrant Approval for 7-15 FC Meeting
	Res 2015-05 - Exhibit A, B, C
	Res 2015-05 - Fixed Asset Disposition Resolution
	Summary Sheet for 7-15 FC Meeting
	ProgramSummaryJuly2015
	VCWC Programming Summary 7-22-15
	Marketing Report 072215



